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Dear Prospective Contractors and Interested Parties:   
 
 
ADDENDUM NUMBER TWO TO INVITATION FOR BIDS NUMBER CMS 17-0049-1     
URINE SAMPLE COLLECTION FOR DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING SERVICES     
 
Addendum Number Two is issued by the County of Los Angeles Department of Children 
and Family Services (DCFS) to prospective bidders of the Urine Sample Collection for 
Drug and Alcohol Testing Services Invitation for Bids (IFB) Number CMS 17-0049-1.  
Addendum Number Two releases the Questions & Answers (Responses to Bidder’s 
Questions/Comments) Document and amends sections of the IFB as provided below.  
Changes only apply to the referenced section that is amended or deleted.  All other 
sections remain unchanged. 
   
A prospective bidder’s failure to incorporate the requirements of this Addendum Number 
Two may result in their Bid not being considered, as determined at the sole discretion of 
the County.  Changes to wording in IFB sections in this Addendum Number Two include 
both deletions and additions.  Deletions are indicated by strikethrough (strikethrough) 
and additions are underlined (underlined).   
 
The following changes are being made to the Statement of Work (SOW): 
 

I. SOW, Section 3.0 Definitions, Sub-section 3.20.1 is revised to read as follows:   
 
Five Panel Drug Test – Cannabinoids, Cocaine, Amphetamines, Opiates and 
Phenycyclidine. 
 
Five Panel Drug Test 
 

 Opiate panel: morphine, codeine & hydrocodone (Vicodin); 

 Amphetamines: amphetamine, methamphetamine & MDMA (Ecstasy); 

 Cocaine metabolites; 

 Cannabinoids (marijuana); and 

 Phencyclidine (PCP) 
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II. SOW, Section 3.0 Definitions, Sub-section 3.20.2 is revised to read as follows: 
 

Other Drugs – Hydromorphone, Oxycodone, Oxymorphone, Heroin, Methadone, 
Zolpidem, and Benzodiazepine  

Other Drugs 

 Hydromorphone 

 Oxycodone 

 Heroin 

 Methadone;  

 Zolpidem; and 

 Benzodiazepine (alprazolam, clonazepam, lorazepam, diazepam, 
nordiazepam, oxazepam, and temazepam). 

 

III. SOW, Section 6.0 Referral Process, Sub-section 6.1.2 is revised to read as follows: 

Referrals will be submitted electronically through the DCFS Drug and Alcohol 
Testing Electronic Referral System. or by email, as a backup method. The referral 
forms in Exhibit A-3 will be sent to the CONTRACTOR via secured email as a 
backup method. 

IV. SOW, Section 11.0 Alcohol Analysis and Certification, Sub-section 11.1 is 
revised to read as follows:   
 
CONTRACTOR shall analyze urine samples collected for Ethanol alcohol testing 
only for clients testing specifically for alcohol, or for alcohol tests specified in 
conjunction with drug tests. 
 

V. SOW, Section 13.0 Warm Line, Sub-section 13.1 is revised to read as follows:   
 
CONTRACTOR shall establish and maintain a “warm line” with additional staff as 
monitored by COUNTY between the peak hours of 10:00 AM to 5:00 PM Monday 
through Friday. A warm line is a designated toll free telephone line for DCFS CSWs 
and other designated COUNTY personnel to provide information and consultation 
on test results and COUNTY’s procedures and process related to Drug and Alcohol 
Testing. CONTRACTOR shall respond to inquiries through the phone line Monday 
through Friday, during the hours of 8:00 AM to 7:00 PM. 

CONTRACTOR shall establish and maintain a “warm line,” which is a designated 
toll free telephone line (warm line) for DCFS CSWs and other designated 
COUNTY personnel to provide information and consultation on test results; as 
well as COUNTY’s procedures and process related to Drug and Alcohol Testing. 
CONTRACTOR shall respond to inquiries through the warm line Monday through 



 
 

 

Friday during the hours of 8:00 AM to 7:00 PM. CONTRACTOR shall provide 
additional staff between the peak hours of 10:00 AM to 5:00 PM Monday through 
Friday. 

VI. SOW, Section 16.2 Monthly Statistical Reports, Sub-section 16.2.2, is revised to 
read as follows:   

 
A copy of Tthe monthly statistical report shall be submitted with each monthly 
CONTRACTOR invoice and shall be required before CPM grants approval of 
CONTRACTOR invoice. 

  
VII. SOW, Section 16.3 Monthly Invoice, Sub-section 16.3.1 is revised to read as 

follows:   
 
Within 30 days of the last day of the month in which the service was rendered On 
a monthly basis, CONTRACTOR shall submit a hard-copy of the invoice as 
referenced by Exhibit A-8, Sample of Vendor Invoice, to CPM and DCFS Finance 
Division for services rendered in the previous month. CONTRACTOR shall 
format the invoice in a manner as determined by COUNTY and CPM. In addition, 
a soft copy of the invoice will be sent to CPM encrypted the same day the hard 
copy is sent out via courier. 

 
 
Except as provided by addendum, all other terms and conditions of the IFB 
remain unchanged.   
 
If you have any questions regarding this Addendum Two, please submit the questions 
by email to: daats@dcfs.lacounty.gov. 
 
 
Sincerely,   
 

Eddie Ota  

 

Eddie Ota, Section Manager   
Contracts Administration Division   
 
Attachment 
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GENERAL   
 

1. QUESTION: A) Can you provide a list of current collection sites?  
 
B) Are there any problems with any of the current collection sites? 

 
RESPONSE: A) Refer to Attachment 1 for a listing of all current collection sites. The hours of 

operations are Monday – Friday: 8AM to 7PM and Saturday or Sunday: 
9AM to 1PM.   

  
 B) The primary challenges with the current collection sites are:  

- Maintaining the required hours of operation;  
- Having both a male and female collector at all times.  

   

2. QUESTION: A) What are the current Collection Sites being utilized (Exhibit A-4 & Exhibit A-5 
list service areas, not specific sites)?   

 
B) Are there any problems with the ones currently being used? 

 
RESPONSE: A) Please refer to response to Question #1 above. 
 

 B) Please refer to response to Question #1 above. 
 

3. QUESTION: Can you provide the addresses and hours of operation for the current collection 
sites? 

 
RESPONSE: Please refer to response to Question #1 above. 

 
4. QUESTION: Can the County please provide a list of current testing locations and pricing for 

the current contract? 
 

RESPONSE: Please refer to response to Question #1 above for a list of current testing 
locations. 

  
 The current price per test are: 
 
 1: Alcohol $8.50 
 2: Drugs and Alcohol $19.00 
 3: D/L Isomer Test $10.00 

 
5. QUESTION: Will the County please provide a list of the current collection sites, including 

addresses? 
 

RESPONSE: Please refer to response to Question #1 above. 
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6. QUESTION: II. IFB, Section 2.3: IFB Timetable.  
 

Will the County please provide a list of people who attended the mandatory 
bidders’ conferences (including vendors/companies and County staff with 
titles)? 

 
RESPONSE: Please see Attachment 2, Mandatory Bidders’ Conference Sign-in Sheets. 

 
7. QUESTION: Can you provide a list of vendors that attended the MANDATORY Bidders’ 

Conference on 10/22/2019 so we know which agencies are qualified to submit 
a bid?  (1.4.4) 
   

 RESPONSE: Please refer to response to question #6 above. 
 

8. QUESTION: Who were the attendees at the October 22, 2019 Bidder’s Conference? Lab 
name and address? 
 

RESPONSE: Please refer to response to question #6 above. 
 

9. QUESTION: Who were the attendees at the November 18, 2019 Bidder’s Conference? 
Name of entities and addresses? 
 

RESPONSE: Please refer to response to question #6 above. 
 

10. QUESTION: Who is the County’s current vendor for these services? 

 

RESPONSE: The current vendor for these services is Pacific Toxicology Laboratories. 

11. QUESTION: Who is the current provider of services? 
 

RESPONSE: Please refer to response to question #10 above.  
 
12. QUESTION: Who is the incumbent? 
 

RESPONSE: Please refer to response to question #10 above.  
 

13. QUESTION: Will the County please provide current pricing paid for 1) urine testing for 
alcohol, 2) urine testing for both alcohol and drugs, and 3) urine testing for D/L 
isomer test? 

 
RESPONSE: Please refer to response to question #4 above.  

 
14. QUESTION: How much does the current provider charge for each (5) panel test? 
 

RESPONSE: The five (5) panel test is included in the Drug and Alcohol Test cost of $19.00 
per test. 
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15. QUESTION: What is the current price per test? 
 
 RESPONSE: Please refer to the response to question #4 above. 
   
16. QUESTION: How much does the current provider charge for confirmation tests? 
 

RESPONSE: The price of the confirmation test is included in the cost of each test listed in 
the response to question #4 above.  

 
17. QUESTION: Can you please provide all current pricing for collection and lab services under 

the current contract. 
 

RESPONSE: Please refer to response to question #4 above which includes lab services. 
 

18. QUESTION: A) How is the County testing for alcohol?   
 
B) What is the cost per test? 

 
RESPONSE: A) Urine sample collection is utilized for alcohol testing. The County is requiring 

only Ethanol alcohol testing. Statement of Work Section 11.0, Alcohol 
Analysis and Certification has been revised to include the requirement of 
Ethanol alcohol testing only in Addendum Two to the Invitation for Bids 
(IFB).  

 
 B) Please refer to response to question #4 above. 

 
19. QUESTION: Is DCFS willing to cost share when collections exceed the threshold? 
 

RESPONSE: No, Department of Children and Family Services (DCFS) will not cost share at 
this time. 

 
20. QUESTION: Is DCFS willing to share in the cost of collections when the amount charged for 

the collection exceeds $20.00? 
 
 RESPONSE: No, DCFS will not cost share at this time. 

 
21. QUESTION: How many immunoassay laboratory tests were conducted in the last year? 
 

RESPONSE: A total of 131,735 enzyme immunoassays were performed in 2018. 
 
22. QUESTION: How many “other” tests were completed in the last year? Oral fluid, hair testing, 

etc.? 
 
 RESPONSE: The current Contract does not provide for “other” tests. Therefore, this 

information is not available. 
 
 



QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 
 
 

4 | P a g e  
 

 
23. QUESTION: Can Contractor co-locate within County (DCFS) offices?   
 

RESPONSE: No, co-locating within County (DCFS) offices is not an option at this time. 
 

24. QUESTION:     How many times in the last 3 years has the County needed the vendor’s expert 

witness to testify/attend court? 

RESPONSE: The Department, does not have the data needed to respond to this question.  
 

25. QUESTION: What is the County’s historic average number of expert testimonies per year? 
 

RESPONSE: Please refer to response to question # 24 above. 
 

26. QUESTION: How often has the County required expert testimony? 
 
 RESPONSE: Please refer to response to question # 24 above. 

 
27. QUESTION:    Will the County please provide positivity rates for:  

1) urine testing for alcohol,  
2) urine testing for both alcohol and drugs, and  
3) urine testing for D/L isomer test?  
4) Have positivity rates increased over time or stayed relatively steady? 

 
RESPONSE: 1) The positivity rate for alcohol is not tracked. 
 

 2) The positivity for both drugs and alcohol has ranged from 15% to 17.7% from 
2018 and 2019 to date. 

 
 3) The positivity rate is not tracked for D/L isomer. 
 
 4) The positivity rate has fluctuated with a low of 15% and high of 17.7% from  
  2018 and 2019 to date.   

 
28. QUESTION: A) What is the current percent positive rate for alcohol?  

 
B) For drug + alcohol? 

 
RESPONSE: A) Please refer to response to Question #27-1 above.  
 
 B) The positivity rate for drug and alcohol tests in October 2019 was 15.4%.   

 

29. QUESTION: What is the County’s current positive rate? 
 

RESPONSE: Please refer to response to question #28-B above.   
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30. QUESTION: A) We notice that this bid is for the same services that were requested just last 
year. Is there a reason this contract is going out to bid after only a year?  

 

 B) Have the County's requirements/preferences changed, or were there 
specific issues with the performance of the last contract? 

 
RESPONSE: A) The prior IFB was cancelled due to requirement changes based on County 

needs. 
 
 B) Yes, requirements in the Statement of Work have changed. Sections 3.20.2 

and 10.1 include more drugs to be tested, Section 7.0 and Exhibits A-4, A-5, 
and A-7 include a change in zip codes, Section 6.6 includes changes in 
system requirements, and Section 8.0 includes changes in hours of 
operation. There were no specific issues with the performance of the last 
Contract.  

 
31. QUESTION: A) Why was the previous bid cancelled?  

 
 B) What has changed in this new bid compared to the previous bid? 

 
RESPONSE: A) Please refer to response to question #30 above. 
 
 B) Please refer to response to question #30 above. 

 
32. QUESTION: Is this going out to bid because of unsatisfactory performance or has the current 

provider exhausted their option years? 
 

RESPONSE: Please refer to response to question #30 above. 
 
33. QUESTION: A) Is Zolpidem a popular drug?  

 
B) How often do you see it?  
 
C) Why is it included now? 

 
RESPONSE: A) The current Contract does not test for this drug. Therefore, the frequency of 

the usage is unknown.  
 
 B) The current Contract does not test for this drug. Therefore, the frequency of 

the usage is unknown. 
  
 C) The drugs listed in the IFB Statement of Work Section 3.0, Sub-section 

3.20.2, Other Drugs, were added based on internal stakeholder input.  
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34. QUESTION: Is the current contract available for examination (including any 
addenda/extensions)? 

 

RESPONSE: Yes, please see Attachment 3, Urine Sample Collection for Drug and Alcohol 

Testing Services Contract and Amendments.  

35. QUESTION: What was the annual sample volume for the past 3 years? Can this be further 
broken down by the 3 testing types? 

 
RESPONSE: The annual sample volume and tests broken down by 3 testing types for the 

past 3 years is as follows (numbers shown are an approximation):  
  

 2017 2018 2019 

Alcohol only  685 445 575 

Drug and 
Alcohol 124,197 131,272 116,911 

D/L Isomer 2632  2656 
        
1776  

Total 127,514 134,373 119,262 
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SOLICITATION 

 
1. QUESTION: Does the County plan to conduct vendor interviews after bids are submitted, 

prior to award notification?  
 

RESPONSE: No, the County does not plan to conduct vendor interviews after bids are 
submitted prior to award notification.  

 
2.    QUESTION: When is the County's anticipated award date? 
 

RESPONSE: The anticipated award date will be mid-June 2020, with a Contract effective 
date of July 1, 2020. 

 
3. QUESTION: Section 2.8.1 Transmittal Letter on page 31 of the pdf bullet 4: The person 

signing this form shall be recognized as the Bidder’s contact person for any 
communication between COUNTY and the Bidder. Would the County consider 
a separate point of contact specifically for this bid process to streamline 
communication? Our authorized signer attends to the needs of multiple 
affiliated entities and will not be able to respond to the County as quickly as a 
specific bid contact. 

 
 RESPONSE: Yes, the county would consider a separate point of contact. Use Appendix D, 

Form 12, Contractor’s Administration in the IFB to designate an alternate 
Contract Project Director to contact. Further information can be found in the 
Statement of Work Section 5.0 Contractor’s Requirements. The authorized 
signer does not need to be the same person as the point of contact.  

 
4. QUESTION: Section 3.1 on page 38: Will the County award preference to contractors who 

are not DVBEs but who subcontract DVBEs for some of the work under this 
contract? 

 
RESPONSE: No. The DVBE preference is only for the Contractors and not sub-contractors.  
 

5. QUESTION: Section 2.8.4.B.b Bidders References page 33 (regarding Form 6): Our 
company has hundreds of current contracts. Providing a list of all public entities 
for the last 3 years would be an enormous task. Further, our list of contracts is 
highly confidential; as a result, we have to request release of this information 
from our clients prior to releasing any information. Would the County accept a 
shorter list of clients (such as the 5 spaces allotted)? If not, would the County 
allow for this list to be sent under a separate cover and ensured to be 
confidential? 

 
 RESPONSE: IFB, Appendix D - Required Form 6 is to list contracts with public entities such 

as State and local government, which would not be confidential. You may 
attach a separate list to the required form and plainly mark it “confidential.” 
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Pages plainly marked confidential will not be released unless the County is 
required by law to release the information. Please refer to IFB Section 1.14. 

    
6. QUESTION: Appendix D Required Form 1, page 171: Will vendors be allowed to offer varied 

pricing depending on collection site? Each collector likely offers a different rate, 
especially in remote areas such as Catalina. 

 
RESPONSE: No, there is no varied pricing rate for remote areas. 

 
7. QUESTION: Can the DCFS please explain why Required Form 2 (page 172 of the pdf) 

Sample Line Item Budget is necessary? If bidders are creating unit costs to 
cover all overheads and cannot charge for additional items, it seems 
unnecessary to break down into any further itemizations for that unit price 

 
RESPONSE: Yes, the County requires a line item budget and narrative per IFB Section 2.0, 

Instructions to Bidders, Sub-section 2.8.3. 
 

8. QUESTION: Section 1.42 on page 26 of the pdf: If vendors have edits or modifications to 
the terms and conditions that they would like to propose, may those be included 
in the bid submission and considered during an award phase? Or will the 
request for any modifications result in vendor disqualification? 

 
 RESPONSE: Please see IFB Sub-section 1.42.2, which states that “Submission of a Bid shall 

constitute acknowledgement and acceptance of all of the terms and conditions 
in this IFB and the attached Sample Contract.” Any communication regarding 
changes to terms and conditions that Bidder feels is necessary should be 
submitted via email to daats@dcfs.lacounty.gov. A response from DCFS to 
such a request, if any, will be directed to all of the agencies that attended the 
bidders’ conference.  

  
9. QUESTION: Regarding Appendix D Required Form 10, page 186: Would the County accept 

a certificate from one of the Board Members certifying that our signor is 
authorized to bind us in a contract instead of filling out this form? Our Board of 
Directors meets infrequently and typically does not have time to include this 
type of item on their agenda. 
 

RESPONSE: Yes, the County would accept an original certificate with wet signatures from 
one of the Board Members certifying that a signor is authorized to bind to a 
Contract instead of filling out Appendix D - Required Form 10. County reserves 
the right to request additional documentation for verification purposes. 

 
10. QUESTION:  Regarding Appendix D Required Form 15, page 194: Would the County accept 

a copy of our SEC 10-K document, filed for publicly traded corporations, which 
discloses all of our financials. 

 
RESPONSE: No, please submit Appendix D Required Form 15. 

  

mailto:daats@dcfs.lacounty.gov
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11. QUESTION: Please clarify the meaning of “the Bidder’s Organization or Principal 
Individuals. 

 
If a Bidder sub-contracted urine testing services (with the advance approval of 
County) with a certified laboratory accredited by the Substance Abuse and 
Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) or the College of American 
Pathologists Forensic Urine Drug Testing (CAP/FUDT) or similar accreditation 
as described in IFB Part 1.4.2 would the sub-contractor be considered part of 
the Bidder’s Organization or Principal Individuals for the purpose of fulfilling 
Bidder’s minimum requirement under section 1.4.1?   

 
RESPONSE: No, “Bidder’s organization or principal individuals must have a minimum of 

three (3) years of verifiable business experience during the last five (5) years 
conducting drug and alcohol testing services through urine sample collection 
including the administration and management of a drug testing program for 
organization(s) that conduct(s) at least 10,000 monthly sample collections and 
tests” per IFB Section 1.4 Bidder’s Minimum Requirements, Subsection 1.4.1. 

 
12. QUESTION: Will DCFS include a cost of transition in assessing in the total cost of bidder’s 

responses? 
 

RESPONSE: No, IFB Section 1.12 COUNTY Option to Reject Bids, states in pertinent part: 
“COUNTY shall not be liable for any costs incurred by a Bidder in connection 
with the preparation and submission of any Bid…” 

 
13. QUESTION: How will DCFS select an agency for the IFB? 
 
 RESPONSE: Please reference IFB Sections 1.10, Final Contract Award by the Board of 

Supervisors, and 3.0, Bid Review and Selection Process. 
    
14. QUESTION:     Because the individual volume from any given client does not reach the 10,000 

minimum monthly sample threshold set forth as a bidder’s requirement, we 
request an exemption to offer a proposal for your agency to consider that will 
meet and exceed your needs? 

 
RESPONSE: We are not able to lower the minimum requirement as the volume of tests per 

month has been more than 10,000 tests per month for the past three years.   
 
15. QUESTION: Section 1.4.2 on pages 8-9 of the pdf, Section 10.5 on page 118, and Section 

11.4 on page 119: Will the County accept a laboratory that has Department of 
Health & Human Services CLIA '88 accreditation instead of SAMHSA or 
CAP/FUDT? 

 
RESPONSE: No, bidder must be accredited by SAMHSA or CAP/FUDT. 
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16. QUESTION: IFB Part: APPENDIX D – PRICING SCHEDULE (Page 2 of 3) 
 

Table I calls for Bidder’s respective cost for Alcohol Urine Testing and Table II 
calls for Bidder’s respective cost for Alcohol and Drug Urine Testing. In the note 
underneath the table it states that the “County’s Projected Annual Volume 
for Table I and II were based on 2017 data”. 

 
What percentage of 2017 Urine Tests screened positive and therefore required 
confirmatory analysis?    (List percentages for “Alcohol” and “both Alcohol and 
Drugs” separately). 

 
RESPONSE:  The positivity rate for drugs and alcohol in 2017 ranged between 14% and 16%. 

The positivity rate for alcohol only is not tracked.   
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 CONTRACT  

 
1. QUESTION: Regarding section 1.33.1.3 of Encryption Standards (page 22 of the pdf) and 

section 9.5.4 Data Encryption Standard (page 101 of the pdf), would the County 
please define what they require for certification? We would like to understand 
expectations. 

 
RESPONSE: Please see Appendix D – Required Form 25, Bidder’s Compliance with 

Encryption Requirements (certification form).  
 
2. QUESTION: Section 7.5.2 on page 58: Would the County allow for insertion of the word 

“third-party” in front of “claims, demands, damages,” etc.? Would the County 
also allow for the removal of “without limitation” and replacement with 
“reasonable?” And would the County consider adding the following sentence to 
the end of the section?: Despite the above, in no event shall contractor be 
obligated to indemnify defend and save harmless the County its officers, 
officials, employees, contractors, agents to the extent that any action claim or 
loss occurs or results, in whole or in part, from the acts or omissions of the 
County its officers, officials, employees, contractors, agents, or third parties. 

 
RESPONSE: No, this is standard County Contract language. This language only refers to 

liabilities related to failure by Contractor, its officers, employees, agents, or 
subcontractors, to comply with the confidentiality requirements of 
Paragraph 7.5. 

 
3. QUESTION: Section 7.5.8 on page 59: Would the County allow for a notification period 

consistent with HIPAA instead of 24 hours? 
 

RESPONSE: No, the County requires a Contractor to provide this notice within 24 hours of 
learning of a suspected breach. 

 
4. QUESTION: Section 8.5.1 on page 62 and 8.6.5 on page 63: Would the County allow for 

more time to provide the user complaint policy, such as 10 business days 
instead of 5 business days? 

 
RESPONSE: No, the Contractor shall provide the County with the Contractor’s policy for 

receiving, investigating and responding to user complaints within five (5) 
business days after Contract effective date.  
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5. QUESTION: Section 8.25.2 on page 77-78: The full policy limits and scope of protection also 
shall apply to the County and its Agents as an additional insured, even if they 
exceed the County’s minimum Required Insurance specifications herein. The 
limits applicable to the County will be determined by the insurer at time of a 
claim in accordance with policy terms and conditions. Would the County allow 
instead for an increase of required policy limits? 

 
RESPONSE: This is standard County Contract language. The limits of your policy must be 

at least the same as the required minimum limits in the Contract. It is acceptable 
if your policy has a higher limit. 

 

6. QUESTION: Section 8.26 on page 79: Our policy is written on CG 00 02, the Claims Made 
form. Would this be acceptable to the County? 
 

RESPONSE: No, this is standard County Contract language. The insurance requirement 
must be met prior to the Contract being executed. 

 
7. QUESTION: Section 8.26.3 on page 80, first bullet: We do not have separate insurance for 

Sexual Misconduct; however, our Commercial General Liability policy does not 
have an exclusion for Sexual Misconduct. Would this be acceptable? 
 

RESPONSE: No, this is standard County Contract language.  
 

8. QUESTION: Section 8.29.6 on page 83: Would the County consider limiting this access to 
employees with direct contact with participants? There are already employment 
requirements set in this contract that hold the Contractor responsible for 
meeting certain background checks.  
 

RESPONSE: No, this provision 8.29 applies to Contractor’s compliance with 
nondiscrimination and affirmative action requirements.    

 
9. QUESTION: Section 8.39 Record Retention on page 86: Would the County allow for 

electronic record keeping? 
 

RESPONSE: Yes, the County allows for electronic record keeping. Please ensure to follow 
Section 9.5, Protection of Electronic County Personal Information, Protected 
Health Information and Medical Information – Data Encryption Standard in the 
Contract. 

 
10. QUESTION: Section 8.43 and 8.44 page 90: Would the County allow for reciprocal 

termination language? 
 

RESPONSE: No, this is standard County Contract language. 
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STATEMENT OF WORK (SOW) 

 
1. QUESTION: Section 14.0 Toll-Free Number, page 120: Would the DCFS consider an 800 

Number call-in system that uses individual donor call-in codes instead of calling 
groups by first letter of last name or by testing schedule? Our system identifies 
the call-in code entered by the donor and indicates whether or not the donor 
should report in for testing the next day. Each donor simply enters their unique 
code to see if they need to come in for testing. This also allows our system to 
track whether or not donors are even calling in and captures this information 
for authorized users to view. This also would allow for fluidity when schedules 
are changed for specific donors. 

 
RESPONSE: No, the process described in the IFB is the County’s preference at this time. 

 
2. QUESTION: IVR- alpha IVR does not support best practices and compliance data would be 

limited using this method. Is there latitude to use PINS and DOB versus alpha? 
 

RESPONSE:  No, the process described in the IFB is the County’s preference at this time. 
 

3. QUESTION: Under client ‘800’ hotline number – Is the County open to using a pin-based 
notification system generated by the Contractor?   

 
RESPONSE: No, the process described in the IFB is the County’s preference at this time. 

   
4. QUESTION: Would the County please provide the current script and options heard by the 

testing participant when they call the 800 number? 
 

RESPONSE:  Following is a sample of the current script:  
 

“You have reached the Department of Children and Family Services. For 

English press one, for Spanish press two. For random press one, for weekly 

press two.  If your last name begins with the letter “A” as in apple, please report 

to the collection site Tuesday, November 26, 2019”.  

  
                         This script is also presented in Spanish.  

 
5. QUESTION: Will the County allow for the Contractor to determine the random schedule and 

notify the clients through the Contractors automated system? 
 

 RESPONSE: No, the process described in the IFB is the County’s preference at this time. 
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6. QUESTION: If County prefers not to use the Contractor’s notification line, how will the 
Contractor track or be notified when clients are scheduled to test?  

 
RESPONSE: The random and weekly schedules will be provided via email to the Contractor 

on a monthly basis.  
 
7. QUESTION: How often will County communicate Weekly or Specialized schedules to 

Contractor? 
 

RESPONSE: Please refer to response to question #6 above. 
 

8. QUESTION: Section 3.20 on page 109: Does the County require specific Hydromorphone 
and Oxymorphone tests to be included in the screen, or is it acceptable for 
these to be grouped into a general Oxycodone screen (where they will be 
detected but are not the specific target drug) with the Hydromorphone and 
Oxymorphone broken out specifically during confirmation? 

 
RESPONSE: DCFS finds it acceptable for Hydromorphone and Oxymorphone tests to be 

grouped into a general Oxycodone screen (where they will be detected but are 
not the specific target drug) with Hydromorphone and Oxymorphone broken 
out specifically during confirmation. 

 
9. QUESTION:     The CONTRACTOR is to comply with the most current SAMHSA recommended 

cutoff levels for alcohol and the Five Panel Drug Test and Other Drugs.  
 

Can you please provide the cutoff levels that are currently being utilized by the 
County? 

 
RESPONSE: The Statement of Work requires that the Contractor comply with SAMHSA 

cutoff levels with DCFS having final approval for any discrepancies that may 
arise.  

 
10. QUESTION: Please provide the cutoff levels of the “Other Drugs.” 

 
 RESPONSE: The current Contract does not include the “other drugs”. The IFB Statement of 

Work requires that the Contractor comply with SAMHSA cutoff levels with 
DCFS having final approval for any discrepancies that may arise.  

 
11. QUESTION: Section 10.1.1 on page 118: Would the County consider industry standard 

cutoffs that may not be in line with SAMHSA, such as an Opiates screen cutoff 
of a more sensitive 300ng/mL instead of 2000ng/mL? 

 
 RESPONSE: The IFB Statement of Work requires that the Contractor comply with SAMHSA 

cutoff levels with DCFS having final approval for any discrepancies that may 
arise.  
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12. QUESTION: Please specify the specific drugs requested under Benzo drug class with 

cutoffs. 
 
 RESPONSE: Benzodiazepine drugs that will be required to be included in testing are as 

follows: alprazolam, clonazepam, lorazepam, diazepam, nordiazepam, 
oxazepam, and temazepam. The most current SAMHSA cut off levels are to 
be utilized for benzodiazepines by Contractor. Statement of Work Section 
3.20.1, Five Panel Drug Test, has been revised via Addendum Two to the IFB 
to include the listed Benzodiazepine drugs.  

 
13. QUESTION: Regarding section 10.4 on page 118: It is stated that the Contractor would send 

out samples to outside laboratories at no charge at the request of the Court. 
Who would pay for the actual test? 

 
RESPONSE: The Contractor will incur all costs.  
 

14. QUESTION:   CONTRACTOR shall analyze urine samples collected for alcohol testing for 
clients testing specifically for alcohol, or for alcohol tests specified in 
conjunction with drug tests.  

 
There are 2 types of alcohol testing: 1) parent alcohol and 2) EtG/Ets 
biomarker/metabolites. Parent alcohol testing is limited to approximately 8-12 
hours post-consumption. EtG/EtS are metabolites that can indicate ethanol 
exposure from as soon as 2 hours and up to 96 hours post-consumption. What 
type of alcohol testing does the County prefer? 

 
RESPONSE: The County is requiring only Ethanol alcohol testing. Statement of Work Section 

11.0, Alcohol Analysis and Certification has been revised to include the 
requirement of Ethanol alcohol testing only via Addendum Two to the IFB.  

 
15. QUESTION:     All samples that screen positive for alcohol will automatically be tested for urine 

glucose (at no additional charge to COUNTY) to identify the possibility of 
fermentation due to diabetic conditions of the client. 

 
A glucose test is not necessary when testing for EtG.  Would the County be 
willing to remove this requirement if an EtG test is performed to test for alcohol 
consumption? 

 
RESPONSE: The County is requiring only Ethanol Alcohol testing. Glucose testing will 

remain as required in IFB Statement of Work Section 11.0, Alcohol Analysis 
and Certification. Statement of Work Section 11.0, Alcohol Analysis and 
Certification has been revised to include the requirement of Ethanol alcohol 
testing only via Addendum Two to the IFB.  
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16. QUESTION: IFB Part: APPENDIX B: EXHIBIT A - STATEMENT OF WORK Alcohol 
Analysis 11.0, 11.1 (page 14) 
Please specify the type of Alcohol Testing desired: CONTRACTOR shall 
analyze urine samples collected for alcohol testing for clients testing specifically 
for alcohol, or for alcohol tests specified in conjunction with drug tests. 

 
Does this refer to ethanol testing (which is designed to detect the presence and 
concentration of alcohol at the time of collection) or does it refer to ethyl 
glucuronide (EtG) testing (which can be utilized to detect a byproduct 
of ethanol to identify whether alcohol had been consumed during the 80 hours 
prior to collection)? 

 
RESPONSE: Please refer to response to Question #14 above.  

 
17. QUESTION: Section 11.0 page 119: Please verify that the alcohol testing required is for 

ethanol and not for ethyl glucuronide (alcohol metabolite). 
 

RESPONSE: Please refer to response to Question #14 above. 
 
18. QUESTION: Section 11.2 page 119: Would the County allow for a yeast test on positive 

alcohols instead of a glucose test? Yeast is a better fermentation indicator 
because glucose can be consumed during the fermentation process and not 
be detected.  

 
RESPONSE: Please refer to response to Question #15 above.  

 
19. QUESTION: Listing of Collection Sites, page 140: If vendors have a few collection sites that 

are not established currently but they intend to lease space for one or multiple 
collection sites following award, would this be acceptable to the DCFS? How 
should vendors indicate this on Exhibit A-7? 

 
RESPONSE: Yes, it is acceptable to DCFS. Bidders should indicate on Exhibit A-7 that 

location is to Be Determined. However, the collection sites must be fully 
operational within 30 days of Contract award as mentioned in IFB Statement of 
Work Section 7.0, Collection Sites, Sub-section 7.5.1. 

 
20. QUESTION: Section 16.3 page 125 and Sample Invoice page 146: Would the DCFS allow 

for other formats for invoicing? For example, our invoice contains the date of 
the result, the donor’s ID (name and unique number assigned by the DCFS), 
the accession number, the test code, description of the test, and the amount 
per test. All other information would be included in the donor profile or on the 
test result which would be available online through our web portal. Would this 
be acceptable? 

 
RESPONSE: No, the format in the IFB for invoicing will remain.   
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21. QUESTION:    Please verify that all services and tests under this contract will be billed to the 
DCFS directly and not through a third-party pay or such as Medicaid. 

 
RESPONSE: DCFS would be billed directly for all contracted drug and alcohol testing.  

   

22. QUESTION: Is DCFS aware that adding Zolpidem will require that the specimens be split 
into two and screened by two separate analyzers? Is DCFS aware of the cost 
increase that comes with the inclusion of Zolpidem? 

 
RESPONSE: The prospective bid is to include all associated costs to test for Zolpidem.  

 
23. QUESTION: Is the IT requirement change expected to be “live” at the date of the new 

contract? 
 

 RESPONSE: DCFS will work with prospective vendor before implementation of web services. 
This will enable the Bureau of Information Systems and vendor to develop, test, 
and implement solutions prior to going live with the new Contract. 

     
24. QUESTION: Saliva tests, approved by US Department of Transportation, is cheaper to test. 

Will DCFS consider? Saliva tests may cut the cost in half and detection costs 
will be cut in half as well. There are twice as many positive results and is cost 
effective. 

 
 RESPONSE: No, the process for urine sample testing described in the IFB is the County’s 

preference at this time.   
 

25. QUESTION: COMMENT: The comment made about more positives with saliva than urine, I 
would ask for verification proving this. Urine detects most drugs up to 72 hours. 
Saliva detects most drugs up to 36 hours. Saliva is also not recommended for 
detecting marijuana. 

 
RESPONSE: Please refer to response to question #24 above.  

 
26. QUESTION: How does DCFS select people for testing? 
 

RESPONSE: The clients, who are suspected of substance abuse, are referred by their 
assigned DCFS Children’s Social Worker.   

 
27. QUESTION: DCFS current panel includes Hydrocodone but not Hydromorphone. The new 

IFB requires to include Hydromorphone however, Hydrocodone was not listed 
under the five panel drug test or other drugs. Does this mean that DCFS do not 
require the testing result for Hydrocodone? 

 
RESPONSE: Hydrocodone testing will be required in the five panel drug test under Opiates. 

Statement of Work Section 3.20.1, Five Panel Drug Test, has been revised to 
include Hydrocodone via Addendum Two to the IFB. 
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The five drug panel consists of the following drugs: 

 Opiate panel: morphine, codeine & hydrocodone (Vicodin); 

 Amphetamines: amphetamine, methamphetamine & MDMA (Ecstasy); 

 Cocaine metabolites; 

 Cannabinoids (marijuana); and 

 Phencyclidine (PCP). 

28. QUESTION:   Would the County please elaborate how court-ordered, on-demand referral 
testing currently works? 

 
RESPONSE: During a Juvenile Dependency Court proceeding, the Court may order an on 

demand test for the client to test the same day or order tests to be completed 
on an on demand basis.    

 
29. QUESTION: Is the County willing to consider a vendor that can place male and female 

collectors at DCFS office locations and perform all required collections at DCFS 
offices rather than maintaining brick & mortar collection sites? 

 
RESPONSE: No, the Contractor is required to establish and maintain collection sites as 

described in the IFB Statement of Work Section 7.0, Collection Sites. 
 

30. QUESTION: Can the County please provide historical or expected number of samples at 
each collection site? This will greatly aid in the calculation of staffing costs. 

 
RESPONSE: This information is not currently tracked. However, each collection site is 

required to have one male and one female on duty during operating hours. 
 

31. QUESTION: When requests for outside retests of samples are made by the Juvenile 
Dependency Court, CONTRACTOR shall send the sample to the designated 
outside laboratory at no charge to COUNTY. The requestor shall make all 
necessary arrangements with the outside laboratory performing the retest. 

 
How many times did this occur in the last year? 

 
RESPONSE: This information is not currently tracked. 

 
32. QUESTION: CONTRACTOR shall establish and maintain a “warm line” with additional staff 

as monitored by COUNTY between the peak hours of 10:00 AM to 5:00 PM 
Monday through Friday. A warm line is a designated toll free telephone line for 
DCFS CSWs and other designated COUNTY personnel to provide information 
and consultation on test results and COUNTY’s procedures and process 
related to Drug and Alcohol Testing. CONTRACTOR shall respond to inquiries 
through the phone line Monday through Friday, during the hours of 8:00 AM to 
7:00 PM. 
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Can you please clarify the hours listed in this item?  One reference is 10:00 AM 
to 5:00 PM while the other is 8:00 AM to 7:00 PM.  Please clarify the difference 
in these two time periods noted. 

 
RESPONSE: The requirement is for warm line staff to be available from 8 AM to 7 PM. The 

hours of 10 AM to 5 PM are noted to specify the peak hours of calls. Statement 
of Work Section 13.0, Warm Line, has been revised via Addendum Two to the 
IFB. 

 
33. QUESTION: The recorded message shall be in both English and Spanish under both the 

Random Testing option and the Weekly Testing option and shall indicate the 
first letter of the last name of those individuals who must report for random or 
weekly testing, along with the day and date on which the sample will be 
collected. 

 
Use of the “first letter of the last name” does not result in truly random testing. 
For example, the same people will show up for testing on the same day. The 
County will get better outcomes, decreased costs, and added compliance 
(deterrence and therapeutic) if it adopts truly randomized testing. Would the 
County consider a truly random alternative to the “first letter of the last name” 
testing schedule? 

 
RESPONSE: No, the process described in the IFB is the County’s preference at this time. 
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34. QUESTION: CONTRACTOR shall be able to send electronic test results in an encrypted 
transaction file every hour between 6:00 AM and 6:00 PM through Web API 
(REST/JSON) secured web services on each business day. 

 
Can the County please provide a sample message for an electronic test result? 

 
RESPONSE: 

 
 

 
35. QUESTION: CONTRACTOR shall also provide and maintain a web-based drug test results 

system (CONTRACTOR’s web-based system) that includes alcohol or drug 
test analysis and allows COUNTY staff who submit an alcohol or drug test 
referral the ability to have web based access to obtain results. The web based 
drug test results system shall allow COUNTY staff to view and print results for 
that day, as well as any prior test date results needed for a client participating 
in the testing program that is part of their caseload.  

 
How many users will need access to the web results portal? 

 
RESPONSE: Up to 50 users will need to have access to the web results portal.  
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36. QUESTION: The records in the encrypted test results transaction file will contain the 
following: 
 

a) DCFS Sequence Number. 
b) Results for each substance tested. 
c) Testing Date. 
d) Testing Site. 
e) Sample ID. 
f) Indicator if it is a “No show.” 
g) Indicator if sample is contaminated. 

 
Will the County please define what would be considered a "contaminated" 
sample? 

 
RESPONSE: Urine can easily be contaminated by bacteria, cells and other substances. In 

these situations, it means that specimen is not suitable for testing. Contractor 
shall have the expert knowledge to determine if the sample has been changed 
in a manner to invalidate the testing. 

 
37. QUESTION: As a temporary measure for the delivery of test results, CONTRACTOR may 

deliver test results by courier at CONTRACTOR’s expense if and when both 
COUNTY’s and CONTRACTOR’S web-based systems are unavailable. 

 
Will the County accept delivery of results via a secure fax or secure email if the 
web-based systems are unavailable? 

 
RESPONSE: No, the process stated in IFB Statement of Work Section 16.1.9 is the County’s 

preference at this time.  
 

38. QUESTION: On a monthly basis, by the 6th calendar day, CONTRACTOR shall submit a 
hard-copy of the statistical report to CPM containing the following information:  

 
The monthly statistical report shall be submitted with each monthly 
CONTRACTOR invoice and shall be required before CPM grants approval of 
CONTRACTOR invoice. 

 
If the statistical report has to be delivered with the invoice, does that mean that 
the invoice also has to be completed/delivered by the 6th calendar day? Will 
the County consider a longer time period for the invoice? 

 
RESPONSE: No, the invoice will be due within thirty (30) days following the last day of the 

service month. However, a copy of the monthly statistical report must be 
attached. Statement of Work Sections 16.2.2 and 16.3 have been revised via 
Addendum Two to the IFB. 
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39. QUESTION: Please confirm that the County wants specimens picked up from collection sites 
every day of the week. 

 
RESPONSE: Specimens should be processed in a manner to meet the test result 

requirements stated in IFB Statement of Work Section 16.0. 
 

40. QUESTION: Please make sure there is a Court Order on file. 
 

Does the contractor have to maintain the Court Order on file? 
 

RESPONSE: The Contractor does not have to maintain Court Orders on file for any 
contracted drug testing.  
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DCFS Alcohol and Drug Testing                                                     
Program Collection Sites                                                                           

as of 12/11/19                                                                                

SPA 1 __________________________  

New Directions Alcohol & Drug Services 

1331 W. Avenue J, Suite 206 

Lancaster, CA 93534 

Hours: Mon- Fri 8:00 am - 7:00 pm  

Sat: 9:00 am - 1:00 pm  

Two Lifestyles 

1224 East Ave. S, Suite C  

Palmdale, California 93550 

Hours: Mon- Fri 8:00am - 7:00pm  

SPA 2 __________________________ 

California Diversion Programs 

21054 Sherman Way #205 

Canoga Park, CA 91303 

Hours: Mon–Fri: 8:00 AM - 7:00 PM 

National Council on Alcoholism and Drug Dependence (NCADD-Santa Clarita) 

24460 Lyons Avenue 

Santa Clarita, CA 91321 

Hours: Mon-Fri 9am -7 pm 

Concentra 

25733 Rye Canyon Rd 

Valencia, CA 91355  

Hours: Mon-Fri 8am - 5pm  

Driver Safety School Family Harmony 

6740 Kester Ave, Suite 206 

Van Nuys, Ca 91405 

Mon-Fri 8am-7pm; Sat 9am-1pm 

Interagency Drug Abuse Recovery Program- (I-ADARP)  

8330 Lankershim Blvd. 

North Hollywood, CA 91605  
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Hours: Mon -Thurs., 9:00am - 1:00pm and 2:00pm - 5:45pm 

Fri.: 11am-1pm and 2pm-5:45pm  

Concentra 

16300 Roscoe Blvd 

Van Nuys, CA 91406  

Hours: Mon- Fri 8:00am - 11am 

SPA 3 __________________________  

Altadena Recovery Center 

3025 N. Lincoln Ave 

Altadena, CA 91101  

Hours: Mon-Fri 8am-7pm  

Sat 9am-1pm  

Azusa Medical Mental Health 

472 South Citrus Ave 

Azusa, CA 91702 

Hours: Mon-Fri 8am-10:30am and 11am-1pm 

National Council on Alcoholism and Drug Dependence (NCADD) 

4626 North Grand Ave. 

Covina, CA 91724  

Hours: Mon-Thurs: 8:30am-7pm 

Fri: 8:30am-5:30pm  

 

Integrative Urgent Care 

148 N Grand Ave. 

Glendora, CA 91741 

Hours: Mon- Fri 12 PM- 7 PM  

Healthpoint 

5345 N. Irwindale Ave.  

Irwindale, CA 91706 

Hours: Mon-Fri 8am-4:30pm  

New Perception To Living 
404 North Gibbs St 

Pomona, CA 91767 

Hours: Monday-Friday 8am-7pm 

NCADD 
656 N. Park Ave 

Pomona, CA 91768  

Hours: Mon. – Fri., 9:00am - 5:45pm  

SPA 4 __________________________ 
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Clinica Romero 
2032 Marengo Street 

Los Angeles, CA 90033 

Hours: Mon. - Fri. 8:00am - 7:00pm  

Saturday: 9:00 am - 1:00pm  

SPA 5 __________________________ 

Driver Safety School Family Harmony 
4323 Sepulveda Blvd  

Culver City, CA 90230 

Hours: Mon-Fri 8am-7pm  

Saturday 9am-1pm  

The Ness Counseling Center 
8512 Whitworth Dr. 

Los Angeles, CA 90035 

Hours: Monday –Thursday: 8:30am-6:30pm 

Friday: 8:30am-3:00pm  

SPA 6 __________________________ 

Family Source Center  
1212 E. 108th Street  

Los Angeles, CA 90059  

Hours: Mon- Fri 8:00am – 7pm  

Rebuild California Alliance  
7656 South Avalon Blvd  

Los Angeles, CA 90003  

Hours: Mon- Fri 8:00am - 7pm 

Shields Place of Family 
9307 S. Central Ave 

Los Angeles, CA 90003  

Hours: Mon- Fri 8:00am - 1:00pm and 2:00pm - 7:00pm  

Saturday 9:00am - 1:00pm  

South Central Family Health Center 
4425 S. Central Ave. 

Los Angeles, CA 90011 

Hours: Hours: Mon-Fri 8am-6pm  

Tri-City Medical Group  
11900 South Avalon Blvd #100  

Los Angeles, CA 90061  

Hours: Mon- Fri 10AM -12 PM and 2 PM- 4 PM 

Turning Point Alcohol & Drug Education 
3756 Santa Rosalia #617  

Los Angeles, CA 90008  

Hours: Mon-Fri 11:00am-7:00pm 

You Can Health Services 
600 W. Manchester Ave. #5  

Los Angeles, CA 90044 

Hours: Mon- Fri 3 PM -7 PM 
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SPA 7 __________________________ 

Clinica Familiar San Lucas  
11050 South Atlantic Ave 

Lynwood, CA 90262 

Hours: Mon-Thur 8am- 1pm and 2pm -5pm 

Fri 8am- 1pm and 2pm -7pm  

Mela Counseling Services Center, Inc. 
5723 Whittier Blvd. 

Los Angeles, CA 90022 

Hours: Mon. - Fri., 8:00am - 7:00 PM 

Saturday: 9:00am - 1:00pm  

L.A.C.A.D.A  
11015 Bloomfield Ave,  

Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670 

Hours: Mon. – Thurs., 9:00am - 7:00pm  

Fri. 9:00am - 5:00pm 

Saturday 9am-1pm  

SPA 8 __________________________ 

Catalina Island Medical 
100 Falls Canyon Rd 

Avalon, CA 90704 

Hours: Mon-Fri 8am-5pm  

West Health Medical Group  
1035 South Prairie Ave., Unit 1  

Inglewood, CA 90301  

Hours: Mon - Fri 8:00 am - 7:00 pm 

Saturday: 9:00am - 1:00pm  

Tarzana Treatment Center  
5190 Atlantic Ave. 

Long Beach, CA 90805  

Hours: Mon. – Fri.: 8:00 AM - 7:00 PM 

Care On Site  
1250 Pacific Avenue 

Long Beach, CA 90813  

Hours: Mon. – Fri.: 8:00am - 11:00am 

Concentra 
21081 S. Western Ave. Ste. 150 

Torrance, CA 90501 

Hours: Mon-Fri 8am-5pm; 
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EXHIBIT A-7A 

1 

Listing of Collection Sites 
 

Use additional sheets as necessary.  
Monday – Friday  

Collection 
Site # 

Service Planning Area 1 

1 

(Circle Zip Code) 
Lancaster  93535     93534   
 93536 
 

Name:      New Directions 
Address: 1331 W Ave J Suite 206, Lancaster 93534 
Contact:  Regina Mack 
Phone#: 661 802 7167 
Fax#:  661 802 4961 
Days of Operation: 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 
Hours of Operation:  MON - FRI 8 A.M. - 7 P.M. 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 

2 

(Circle Zip Code) 

Palmdale  93543     93550  
  

 

Name: Two Lifestyles 
Address: 1224 East Ave. S, Suite C, Palmdale 93350 
Contact:  Bobby Hampton 
Phone#: 661 402 3076 
Fax#: 667 402 3075 
Days of Operation: 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 
Hours of Operation:  MON-FRI 8 A.M.- 7 P.M. 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 

 
Collection 

Site # 
Service Planning Area 2 

3 

(Circle Zip Code) 
Santa Clarita 91342     91343 
 
              91321 
 
 

 
              91355 
  

 
9 
 

Name:   NCADD 
Address: 24460 Lyons Ave. Valencia 91321 
Contact:  Linda Elliot, Richard, Karen  
Phone#: 661 253 9400 
Fax#: 661 253 9403 
Days of Operation: 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 
Hours of Operation:  MON-FRI _9_A.M.- _7_P.M. 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X 
 
Name: Concentra 
Address: 25733 Rye Canyon Rd. Valencia 91355 
Contact: Rita Contreras 
Phone: 661-295-2500 
Fax: 661-257-0441 
Days of Operation: 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 
Hours of Operation:  MON-FRI 8 A.M.- 11 A.M. 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 

4 

(Circle Zip Code) 
Van Nuys  91331     91402  
  91405  
 
                                91605 
 
                                 91406       

 Name: Driver Safety Van Nuys 
Address: 6740 Kester Ave Suite 206 Van Nuys 91405 
Contact:  Claudia 
Phone#: 818 787 7878 
Fax#: 818 787 4076 
Days of Operation: 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 
Hours of Operation:  MON-FRI _8_A.M.-_7_P.M. 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 
 

 Name: IADARP 
Address: 8330 Lankershim Blvd. No Hollywood 91605 
Contact:  Lindsey Donahue 
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2 

 
 

Phone#: 818-994-7454 
Fax#: 818-252-1410 
Days of Operation: 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 
Hours of Operation:   
MON- THUR. 9 A.M.- 5:45 P.M. 
FRI. 11A.M.-5:45P.M. 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 
 

 Name: Concentra, Van Nuys 
Address: 16300 Roscoe Blvd Van Nuys 91406 
Contact:  Grace 
Phone#: 818-893-4426 
Fax#: 818-8947564 
Days of Operation: 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 
Hours of Operation:  
MON-FRI 8 A.M. - 11 A.M. 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 

5 

(Circle Zip Code)  
West San Fernando Valley   
                 91303      91304      
                 91324      91325 

Name: California Diversion Programs 
Address: 20154 Sherman Way #205 Canoga Park 
91303 
Contact: Amanda Valdez  
Phone#: 818 716 0188 
Fax#: 818 716 0188 
Days of Operation: 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 
Hours of Operation:  MON-FRI 8 A.M.- 7 P.M. 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 

Collection 
Site # 

Service Planning Area 3 

6 

(Circle Zip Code) 
Pasadena  90032     91101  
                 90042      90065      
                 90041      91202      
                 91008      91208 
 
                  91001 

Name:  Altadena Recovery Center  
Address: 3025 N. Lincoln Ave Altadena 91001 
Contact:  Shirley 
Phone#: 626-765-6905 
Fax#: 626-765-6617 
Days of Operation: 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 
Hours of Operation:  MON-FRI 8 A.M.- 7 P.M. 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 

7 

(Circle Zip Code) 
El Monte  91732    91733 
                  91745     91731 
 
 

 Name:  
Address:   
Contact:    
Phone#:   
Fax#:   
Days of Operation: 
MON__TUE__WED__THU__FRI__ 
Hours of Operation:  MON-FRI __A.M.-__P.M. 
MON__TUE__WED__THU__FRI__ 

8 

(Circle Zip Code) 
Pomona                       91766      91767 
                                     91765      91768 

Name: New Perception to Living 
Address: 404 N Gibbs St. Pomona, 91767 
Contact:  Artemis 
Phone#: 909-461-6506 
Fax#: 909-461-6506 
Days of Operation: 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 
Hours of Operation:  MON-FRI _8_A.M.-_7_P.M. 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 



EXHIBIT A-7A 

3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
Name: NCADD Pomona 
Address: 656 N Park Ave. Pomona 91768 
Contact:  Lizet Montes  
Phone#: 909-629-4084  
Fax#: 909-629-4086  
Days of Operation: 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 
Hours of Operation:  MON-FRI _9_A.M.-_5:45_P.M. 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 

9 

(Circle Zip Code) 
Glendora                   91702      91724  
                                  91748      91744 
  
 
 
                              
                             91741 
 
 
                             91702 
 
 
                              91706 
 
 
 

Name: NCADD Covina  
Address: 4626 N. Grand Ave, Covina 91724 
Contact:  Doug  
Phone#: 626-331-5316  
Fax#: 626-332-2219  
Days of Operation: 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI _X_ 
Hours of Operation:  MON-THU 8:30 A.M.-_7_P.M. 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI___ 
FRI: 8:30A.M. – 5:30 P.M. 
MON__TUE__WED__THU__FRI_X__ 
 

 Name: Integrative Urgent Care 
Address: 148 N Grand Ave, Glendora 91741 
Contact: Betty 
Phone: 626-594-0478 
Fax: 626-594-0478 
Days of Operation: 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI _X_ 
Hours of Operation:  MON-THU 12:00 P.M.-_7_P.M. 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 
 
Name: Azusa Medical and Mental Health 
Address: 472 S Citrus Ave. Azusa 91702 
Contact: Kathy 
Phone: 626-214-9781 
Fax: 626-337-0833 
Days of Operation: 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI _X_ 
Hours of Operation:  MON- FRI 8 A.M.- 1P.M. 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 
 
Name: Healthpointe Irwindale 
Address: 5345 N Irwindale, Irwindale 91706 
Contact:  Daniel Navarro  
Phone#: 626-214-9781  
Fax#: 626-337-0833  
Days of Operation: 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI _X_ 
Hours of Operation:  MON- FRI 8 A.M.-_4:30_P.M. 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X__ 



EXHIBIT A-7A 

4 

Collection 
Site # 

Service Planning Area 4 

10 

(Circle Zip Code) 
Metro North   90057     90006  
                      90033 

Name: Clinica Romero  
Address: 2032 Marengo St. Los Angeles, CA 90033 
Contact:  Elaine  
Phone#: 323-987-1034  
Fax#: 323-987-1402  
Days of Operation: 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 
Hours of Operation:  MON-FRI _8_A.M.-_7_P.M. 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X__ 

 

Collection 
Site # 

Service Planning Area 5 

11 

(Circle Zip Code) 
West Los Angeles 90019     90066 
 
                                            90230
  
                                            90035 

Name: Driver Safety School  
Address: 4323 Sepulveda Blvd, Culver City,90230 
Contact:  Arnold Abrams  
Phone#: 310-837-1818  
Fax#: 310-837-4473  
Days of Operation: 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 
Hours of Operation:  MON-FRI _8_A.M.-_7_P.M. 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X__ 
 
 
Name: The Ness Counseling  
Address: 8512 Whitworth Dr. Los Angeles, 90035 
Contact:  Dovie Brown  
Phone#: 310-360-8512  
Fax#: 310-360-8510  
Days of Operation: 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 
Hours of Operation:  MON-THU _8_A.M.-_6:30_P.M. 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI___ 
Hours of Operation:  FRI _8_A.M.-_3_P.M. 
MON__TUE__WED__THU__FRI_X__ 

 

Collection 
Site # 

Service Planning Area 6 

12 
(Circle Zip Code) 

Vermont Corridor 90003     90044 
                                           90001 

Name:  Rebuild California Alliance  
Address: 7656 S. Avalon Blvd, Los Angeles 90003 
Contact:  Chanice Ward  
Phone#: 323-867-1127  
Fax#: 323-867-1127  
Days of Operation: 
MON X TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 
Hours of Operation:  MON-FRI _8_A.M.-_7_P.M. 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X__ 
 
Name:  You Can Health Services 
Address: 600 W Manchester Ave #5, Los Angeles 90044 
Contact:  Joseph Tamifor  
Phone#: 323-750-9247  
Fax#: 323-750-9248  
Days of Operation: 
MON X TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 
Hours of Operation:  MON-FRI _3_P.M.-_7_P.M. 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X__ 



EXHIBIT A-7A 

5 

 
 
 
 
 
 

13 

(Circle Zip Code) 
Wateridge North 90016     90011 
                                          90047 

                       
90008 

 
 

 Name:  Turning Point Alcohol and Drug  
Address: 3756 Santa Rosalia Dr. #617, Los Angeles 
90008 
Contact:  Michelle Parker  
Phone#: 323-296-1840  
Fax#: 323-296-0151  
Days of Operation: 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 
Hours of Operation:  MON-FRI _11_A.M.-_7_P.M. 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 

14 
(Circle Zip Code) 

Wateridge South     90002     90018 
                                90062     90037 

 Name: Shields Place of Family  
Address: 9307 South Central Ave, Los Angeles 90002 
Contact:  Janet  
Phone#: 323-564-6982  
Fax#: 323-564-5970  
Days of Operation: 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 
Hours of Operation:  MON-FRI _8_A.M.-_7_P.M. 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X__ 

15 

Compton            90222    90059 
                           90262 
 
                            90061 

Name: Family Source Center  
Address: 1212 E. 108th St., Los Angeles 90059 
Contact:  Sheila  
Phone#: 323-357-6262  
Fax#: 323-987-0969  
Days of Operation: 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 
Hours of Operation:  MON-FRI _8_A.M.-_7_P.M. 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X__ 
 
 
Name: Clinica Familiar San Lucas  
Address: 11050 S. Atlantic Ave, Lynwood 90262 
Contact:  Silvia Palencia  
Phone#: 310-635-3800  
Fax#: 310-635-0364  
Days of Operation: 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 
Hours of Operation:  MON-THU _8_A.M.-_5_P.M. 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI__ 

 FRI: 8 A.M.-7 P.M. 
MON__TUE__WED__THU__FRI_X_ 
 
Name: Tri-City Medical Group 
Address: 11900 Avalon Blvd #100, Los Angeles 90061 
Contact:  Dr. Jack Azad  
Phone#: 323-756-1317  
Fax#: 323-756-4015  
Days of Operation: 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 
Hours of Operation:  MON-THU _10_A.M.- 5 P.M. 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI__ 



EXHIBIT A-7A 

6 

Collection 
Site # 

Service Planning Area 7 

16 

(Circle Zip Code) 
Belvedere  90022     90201  
                 90255     90640 
                 90660 

Name: MELA  
Address: 5723 Whittier Blvd., Los Angeles, CA 90022  
Contact:  Kathy Salazar  
Phone#: 323-721-6855  
Fax#: 323-721-8631  
Days of Operation: 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 
Hours of Operation:  MON-FRI _8_A.M.-_7_P.M. 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X__ 

17 

(Circle Zip Code) 
Santa Fe Springs 90280     90670  
  
 

Name: LACADA  
Address: 11015 Bloomfield Ave Santa Fe Springs 90670 
Contact:  Lindsay Donahue  
Phone#: 562-906-2676  
Fax#: 562-906-2681  
Days of Operation: 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 
Hours of Operation:  MON-THU 8:30_A.M.-_7_P.M. 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI__ 

  FRI: 8:30 A.M. – 5:30 P.M. 
MON__TUE__WED__THU__FRI_X_ 

 

 

Collection 
Site # 

Service Planning Area 8 

18 
(Circle Zip Code) 

South County               90805     90813 
                                     90731     90744 

Name: Tarzana Treatment Center  
Address: 5190 Atlantic Ave. Unit 1, Long Beach,90805 
Contact:  Veronica Moya  
Phone#: 562-428-4111  
Fax#: 562-216-2980  
Days of Operation: 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 
Hours of Operation:  MON-FRI _8_A.M.-_7_P.M. 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X__ 
 
Name: Care On Site 
Address: 1250 Pacific Ave Long Beach 90813 
Contact:  Tino Ho  
Phone#: 562-437-0831  
Fax#: 562-624-2725  
Days of Operation: 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 
Hours of Operation:  MON-FRI _8_A.M.-_10_A.M. 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X__ 
 

19 Avalon, Catalina Island 90704 

Name:  Catalina Island Medical Center  
Address: 100 Falls Canyon Rd Avalon, CA  
Contact:  Lyra Garrido  
Phone#: 310-510-0700  
Fax#: 310-510-2938  
Days of Operation: 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 
Hours of Operation:  MON-FRI _8_A.M.-_5_P.M. 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI__X_ 
 

 



EXHIBIT A-7A 

7 

Collection 
Site # 

Service Planning Area 8 

20 

(Circle Zip Code) 
Torrance  90250     90501  
 
                         90301 

Name: West Health Medical Group  
Address: 1035 S Prairie unit 1, Inglewood, CA 90301 
Contact:  Marcella  
Phone#: 310-672-6500  
Fax#: 310-672-6781  
Days of Operation: 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 
Hours of Operation:  MON-FRI _8_A.M.-_7_P.M. 
MON_X_TUE_X_WED_X_THU_X_FRI_X_ 

 
 
Saturday or Sunday Sites:   

Collection 
Site # 

Service Planning Area 1 

1 
93534 or 93535 or 93536 or 93550 or 
93543 

(Circle One Zip Code) 

Name:      New Directions  
Address: 1331 W Ave J Suite 206, Lancaster 93534 
Contact:  Regina Mack  
Phone#: 661 802 7167  
Fax#:  661 802 4961  
Days of Operation: 
SAT_X_ or SUN__ 
Hours of Operation: SATURDAY _9_A.M.-_1_P.M. 

 
Collection 

Site # 
Service Planning Area 2 

2 

91342 or 91402 or 91405 or 91343 or 
91304 or 91303 or 91324 or 91325 or 
91331 

(Circle One Zip Code) 

Name: Driver Safety Van Nuys  
Address: 6740 Kester Ave Suite 206 Van Nuys 91405 
Contact:  Claudia  
Phone#: 818 787 7878  
Fax#: 818 787 4076  
Days of Operation: 
SAT_X_ or SUN__ 
Hours of Operation: SATURDAY _9_A.M.-_1_P.M. 

 
Collection 

Site # 
Service Planning Area 3 

3 

90032 or 91101 or 90041 or 90042 or 
90065 or 91732 or 91733 or 91745 or 
91765 or 91766 or 91767 or 91768 or 
91702 or 91724 or 91748 or 91744 or 
91008 or 91208 or 91202 or 91731 

(Circle One Zip Code) 
 
                   91001 

Name:  Altadena Recovery Center  
Address: 3025 N. Lincoln Ave., Altadena 91001  
Contact:  Shirley  
Phone#: 626-765-6905  
Fax#: 626-765-6617  
Days of Operation: 
SAT_X_ or SUN__ 
Hours of Operation: SATURDAY _9_A.M.-_1_P.M. 
SAT_X_ or SUN__ 

Collection 
Site # 

Service Planning Area 4 

4 
90057 or 90006 or 90033 

(Circle One Zip Code) 

Name: Clinica Romero  
Address: 2032 Marengo St. Los Angeles, 90033 
Contact:  Elaine  
Phone#: 323-987-1034  
Fax#: 323-987-1402  
Days of Operation: 
SAT_X_ or SUN__ 
Hours of Operation: SATURDAY _9_A.M.-_1_P.M. 
SAT_X_ or SUN__ 



EXHIBIT A-7A 

8 

 
Collection 

Site # 
Service Planning Area 5 

5 

90019 or 90066  
(Circle One Zip Code) 

                90230 

Name: Driver Safety School  
Address: 4323 Sepulveda Blvd, Culver City,90230 
Contact:  Arnold Abrams  
Phone#: 310-837-1818  
Fax#: 310-837-4473  
Days of Operation: 
SAT_X_ or SUN__ 
Hours of Operation: SATURDAY _9_A.M.-_1_P.M. 
SAT_X_ or SUN__ 
 

Collection 
Site # 

Service Planning Area 6 

6 

90016 or 90047 or 90002 or 90011 or 
90059 or 90018 or 90037 or 90062 or 
90222 or 90262 or 90001 or 90003 or 
90044 

(Circle One Zip Code) 

 Name: Shields Place of Family  
Address: 9307 South Central Ave, Los Angeles,90002 
Contact:  Janet  
Phone#: 323-564-6982  
Fax#: 323-564-5970  
Days of Operation: 
SAT_X_ or SUN__ 
Hours of Operation: SATURDAY _9_A.M.-_1_P.M. 
SAT_X_ or SUN__ 
 

Collection 
Site # 

Service Planning Area 7 

7 
90022 or 90201 or 90255 or 90640 or 
90660 or 90280 or 90670  

Circle One Zip Code) 

Name: MELA  
Address: 5723 Whittier Blvd., Los Angeles 90022 
Contact:  Kathy Salazar  
Phone#: 323-721-6855  
Fax#: 323-721-8631  
Days of Operation: 
SAT_X_ or SUN__ 
Hours of Operation: SATURDAY _9_A.M.-_1_P.M. 
SAT_X_ or SUN__ 
 

Collection 
Site # 

Service Planning Area 8 

8 

90805 or 90813 or 90731 or 90744 or 
90250 or 90501  

(Circle One Zip Code) 
 
                        90301 

Name: West Health Medical Group  
Address: 1035 S Prairie, Inglewood, 90301 
Contact:  Marcella  
Phone#: 310-672-6500  
Fax#: 310-672-6781  
Days of Operation: 
SAT_X_ or SUN__ 
Hours of Operation: SATURDAY _9_A.M.-_1_P.M. 
SAT_X_ or SUN_ 
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